



Valhalla is edited by John Koning and Chris Wagner, and published by Koning on a tri-weekly schedule. Material pertaining directly to Valhalla or to the game it carries should be sent to Koning; material pertaining to reader service departments should be sent to Wagner, unless otherwise indicated. Subscriptions are \$2.00 per year from Wagner. Make checks payable to Project Analysis Corporation.

# VALHALLA

John Koning  
(Monday thru Friday)  
917 E. Gorgas St.  
Louisville, Ohio 44641  
(Saturday and Sunday)  
318 So. Belle Vista  
Youngstown, Ohio 44509

Chris R. Wagner  
c/o Strategy & Tactics  
Box 11-187  
Loudonville, N. Y. 12211  
Phones: Louisville - 875-1827  
Youngstown - 799-2141

Valhalla #8, 4 October 1968, is a joint production of Project Analysis Corporation and the DWE Press (and is DWE Pub #118). Val attempts to combine the features of a postal diplomacy journal and of a sub-division of Strategy and Tactics (available from Wagner at \$7.50 per year -- six issues), featuring a number of classified ads too space-consuming for S&T.

Listings in our service departments are without charge, but should be sent to Chris Wagner (not John Koning). We carry listings for all... subscribing to either S&T or Valhalla is not a prerequisite for listing.

Readers whose Permanent Listings first appeared in Valhalla #2 are reminded that their listings must be renewed (and updated) to be included in issue #9. Renewals to Wagner as well.

We are sorry that some who are listed in our departments have gotten so little response to their ads. We know this is not true in all cases, since Sid Cochran mentioned that he was overwhelmed by applicants for his ARDENEX III game, advertised in three issues of Valhalla. All we can say is that our circulation is still quite limited (under 200) but is growing at a steady rate, and we hope that in the future more interested parties will read your notices.

DEADLINES (AGAIN) Well, not really deadlines, but... I have decided that it would be most sensible to send all moves (except retreats, etc., due in mid-week) to my Youngstown address. Louisville's post office is notoriously slow, and a letter designed to arrive on the Friday of the deadline date might be held up for a day or so. Editors of magazines in which I play are requested to continue sending their magazines to Louisville... in a bi-weekly game I can't afford to wait three or four days to get the moves.

"Fall 1903, Game 1968AB"

R U S S I A, G E R M A N Y I N V A D E E N G L A N D

SEVERAL MED-AREA BATTLES LOOM

ENGLAND: A Fin-StP; F StP(nc)-Nwy; F Swe (S) F StP-Nwy; F Nwy-  
(Reinsel) Nth; F Lon (S) F Nwy-Nth

FRANCE: F Mar-Pie; F Naf-Tun; A Ven-Rom; A Spa-hold; F Tus (S)  
(Latimer) A Ven-Rom

GERMANY: F Nth (C) A Kie-Yor; F Helg (C) A Kie-Yor; F Bel (S)  
(Peery) F Nth; A Kie-Yor; A Den-Swe; A Mun-Kie

ITALY: A Pie-Ven; A Rom (S) A Pie-Ven; F Lyon-Mar; F Tyrr-WMed  
(McCallum)

AUSTRIA: F Alb-Adr; A Gal (S) A Rum; A Bud-Ser; A Rum (S)  
(Pournelle) A Bud=Ser; A Tyr-Tri

RUSSIA: A Sev-Arm; A War-Mos; A Lvn-StP; F Nwg-Edi  
(Smythe)

TURKEY: F Ion (S) F Gre-Alb; F Gre-Alb; F Aeg-Con; A Bul (S)  
(Zelazny) A Ser; A Ser (S) RUSSIAN A Sev-Rum

Underlined moves do not succeed. The Italian Army Rome is routed., and may retreat to Naples, Apulia, or off the board. This retreat should accompany the "Winter 1903" orders, which may be made contingent upon it.

-----  
DEADLINE FOR "WINTER 1903" ORDERS IS FRIDAY, 25 OCTOBER 1968  
-----

BUILDS: (Gains and ~~Losses~~)

ENGLAND: Lon, Lvp, ~~Edi~~, Nwy, StP, Swe ((5)) No change  
FRANCE: Bre, Par, ~~Maf~~, Spa, Por, Rom, Tun ((6)) Build ONE  
GERMANY: Ber, Kie, Mun, Hol, Den, Bel ((6)) No change  
ITALY: Nap, ~~Rom~~, Ven, ~~Tyr~~, Mar ((3)) Remove ONE  
AUSTRIA: Vie, Bud, Tri, ~~Ser~~, Rum ((4)) Remove ONE  
RUSSIA: Mos, War, ~~Ser~~, Sev, Edi ((4)) No change  
TURKEY: Con, Ank, Smy, Bul, Gre, Ser ((6)) Build ONE  
= = = = =

MOVE ANALYSIS As expected, Turkey and Austria are now at war, but Russia has evidently entered the fray on Austria's side. The move to Armenia puts great pressure on Turkey, who must protect both Ankara and Smyrna -- tying up two armies to control the Russians' one -- or risk losing a center by being outguessed.

In the west, Germany's convoy to Yorkshire assure that, barring German procrastination, Liverpool must fall in 1904 (since there is no English piece within one move of Liverpool). The German deference to the Russian seizure of Edinburgh evidences strong Russo-German cooperation against England.

Outguessed in Spring 1903, Italy has at least broken even on this move, taking Marseilles from the French as they moved into Piedmont. Note that the Italian move "A Rom (S) A Pie-Ven" remains valid despite the fact that the Army Rome is dislodged by an attack from Venice. This support remains good because of the rulebook's statement that support is cut only by an attack from the side (i.e., from a space other than that into which the support is being given). In many magazines the "Miller Rule" is employed, which states that a dislodged army may give no support (and, in some magazines, that any move made by a dislodged army -- which did not successfully attack another province -- is voided). While there is much to be said for this interpretation (it shades the odds in the game slightly in favor of offense rather than defense), it is not used in Valhalla, sTab, or Ragnarok, among others.

VIENNA The High Command of the Austro-Hungarian Empire announces that the Diet has unanimously declared that a state of war exists between the Dual Empire and the Sultanate of Turkey.

BERLIN to MOVE ANALYST Has Koning really been seeing an analyst? Has it done any good? Would it be better off seeing a veterinarian? How about a brain surgeon? Perhaps a cosmologist? How about a good embalmer? Will Pecry let Koning out-guess him or will he pull a sneaky? Will he give up the attack on England and turn on Iceland, or America? Or maybe quite the whole thing and run for Postmaster-General?

NOTES OF INTEREST (OR NOT):

- To Italia: Oh John, Poor John, Jim's hugh you in the closet and I'm feeling so sad!
- To Austria: Oh Jerry, Poor Jerry, Dan's swiped you computer and now you're out of free time.
- To England: Oh Charlie, Poor Charlie, Darwin's traced your line and you're out on a limb, swinging.
- To Russia: Oh John, Poor John, Larry's going to help you, just as soon as he can, but will too soon be soon enough?
- To Tufkey: Oh Monte, Monte, hail to Montezuma, we will be loyal to thee (Alma Mater of San Diego State College).

KIEL: OFFICIAL COMMUNIQUE OF THE PEERIREICH NAVY: Upon instruction of the Grand Peericrat, Johann von Ralstonstadt, I have ordered the entire Peerireich Navy to take action to transport into Angland units of the Peerireich's Armed Forces.

BERLIN The Peerireich has graciously consented to grant the honor of landing the first marines in Scotland to our Russian allies. The Government expects a swift campaign to complete the occupation of Angland.

CLARION CASTLE (23 October 1903) A small group of Peerireich Marines disguised as Telephone servicemen infiltrated the Castle in the wee

hours of this morning and successfully captured the entire war plans staff of the Angland Military High Command. The commando group failed in its secondary objective, the capture of Big Brother himself, who was away from the Castle at the time.

ST. PEERIGRAD (26 October 1903) War Command Central: The Supreme Peericrat, Johann von Talstonstadt, today met with his entire Battle Staff (Peerimob) to plan further maneuvers in the war with Anglan revolutionists in Britain. Following the meeting it was revealed that the following steps had been undertaken:

- 1) The Grand Peerian Fleet has been ordered to seek out and destroy all Anglan forces, anywhere.
- 2) The Peerian Army has been ordered to give full cooperation to the Fleet and in addition to render any and all assistance requested by the Peerireich's allies.
- 3) Ordered the continuing seizure of Anglan territories around the world.
- 4) Approved the transfer of Admiral Otto von Bluetooth-Freezniz from command of the Antarctic fleet to the Rhine River Flotilla. Admiral Bluetooth-Freezniz is rumored to be in disfavor with the Grand Peericrat for disparaging remarks made about the quality of the schnappes served aboard his ships.
- 5) Dispatched a special commission to determine the amount of aid needed by the Maldive Islands against the attack of Indonesian guerillas.

ROME (2 November 1903) The Archbishop of St. Peerigrad, Jacques Cardinal Peericelli, arrived here today for a conference with the Pontiff. The Archbishop paid a courtesy call on the senior Italian cleric, Jose Cardinal Fleciano, in Rome. The Archbishop, one of the youngest and most progressive in the Church, announced he hoped to bring the Holy Father up to date on events in northern Europe.

COPENHAGEN (3 November 1903) Peerireich forces today were reviewed by the Supreme Peericrat (lest we be confused it should be clearly understood that the Supreme Peericrat is the highest figure in the Peerireich and acts through his chief aide, the Grand Peericrat. The identity of the Supreme Peericrat is a most closely guarded secret and will not be revealed until the end of the game) as preparation for tomorrow's attack on Malme. The troops, who last Spring attempted to seize the city for the Russians, were inspired by the words of wisdom of the Supreme Peericrat, but words may not be enough to conquer the city's high battlements.

HELGOLAND (5 November 1903) The 3rd Peerireich Fleet today announced that it had been successful in completing the harvest of the Islands crop of greenbeans before the annual winter frost. The commander of the fleet, Admiral Hans Bang-Bang Topscott, received the commander of the local garrison, Lt. J.g. William Linden Beardman, and congratulated him personally.

TIERRA DEL GUNO (6 November 1903) After eleven months of occupation

the islanders are finally beginning to get used to the presense of Peerireich forces in the place of the hated Anglan hordes. Capt. Johann der Fligendernun, commander of the cruiser Huggen de Kissen, has appointed a civilian council to aid in the government of the island. The commission's first topic of cusiness was an order to begin the construction of a giant nursery, for the purpose of growing greenbeans.

LAGOS, NIGERIA (13 November 1903) Following a chaotic election campaign in Periland, Postmaster General Lawrence O'Peering was elected President of Periland. The final tallies were:

O'Peering	13,420,000 votes	(National PTA Party Candidate)
Greene	5,132 votes	(Hillsborough PTA Party Candidate)
Reagan	320,003 votes	(Peace and Freedom Party Candidate)
Allioto	6,231,430 votes	(War and Slavery Party Candidate)

However, when O'Peering will take office is unknown because at the present moment he is imprisoned in the California Home for the Bewildered under the order of Gov. Reagan and under the guard of thousands of Watts Gestapo Agents (WGA) under Gen. Hugie Black Panther Kacs. Gen. Hershey Lewis, commander of the State Militia has announced he will back O'Peering and unless O'Peering is released within the month his forces will move to release him. It appears Periland may be moving through a period of domestic crisis as the liberal Peeristic forces move to seize power from the older conservative Peerian forces which has controlled the state for years.

Mayor Joseph Allioto, of Walnut Creek, announced he would also back O'Peering, bringing a huge majority of the state's population behind the imprisoned President-Elect.

Meanwhile, Gov. Reagan, holed up in his office in Sacramento, continues to control the keys of power. The long-unanswered question of whether Reagan can think or not has been referred to the Academic Senate of the University of Concord for debate.

HARPER VALLEY (23 November 1903) The National Headquarters of the PTA Party today ordered all its members to boycott all movies in the nation until President-Elect O'Peering is released. Heavy pressure from Hollywood is expected to force Reagan to lift the imprisonment.

MUNICH (3 November 1903) Peerireich forces today announced the elimination of the last vestages of the Bavarian Illuminati conspiracy here. Using a super-sudsy detergent, K-3 "Whitepower," sprayed from low-flying helicopters, units of the Peerireich Air Force wiped the area clean as CharlesReinsel's mind. Marshal von Bulow, Chief of the Peeristaff, announced an innkeeper as well as three wandering beggars posing as three kings, had been imprisoned as perpetrators of the conspiracy.

P.S. I love you!

SUFFIELD EXPERIMENTAL STATION (14 November 1903) Everybody is quiet here, recovering from a bad week of experimenting on how to cure the greenebean runs. No really sure fire way has been found, but we're still looking.

ST. PEERIGRAD (13 November 1903) Have you seen STAB? Have you seen Beery's latest marvel, which will make 2001 seem dull? What are those pillars in different colors with strange carvings? Where is Finian's Rainbow and will the mysterious probe ever get there. How are things in Blockomora? How are things in Lincoln, Nebraska? Is it true that Larry Peery isn't really writing these at all but that Jack Greene dictates them over the phone to Buddy Tretick who sends them to Margaret Gemignani who puts them in code and sends them to Conrad von Metzke, who gives them to Hal Naus disguised as copies of Costaguana, and from there they are sent to Wade Hampton Johnston, who really mails them out.

GENEVA (DWE) Frankly no, I wouldn't believe that.

(BACK TO) ST. PEERIGRAD Meanwhile, stay tuned on, turned on, tuned in? Anyway, send Koning a used 6¢ stamp to pay for this junk and send Peery a good 6¢ stamp to cheer him up. Oh yes, remember

PEERY FOR POSTMASTER GENERAL.....

God bless you, Mrs. Robinson, wherever and whoever you are.

---

## GAME OPENINGS & ETC.

- 1) Diplodeur, Bob Johnson reports, is not available save to AHIKS members. He also reports that the two variants he is planning are not firmly defined yet, but he will pass on information when they are finished.
- 2) Armageddonia has folded. The two remaining Arma games will be carried in a bulletin issued especially for that purpose, Acelanda, from John A. McCallum, "A Qtrs," SES, Ralston, Alberta, Canada. John reports that Acelanda will be strictly devoted to the two games, and will not feature the many articles that make Brobdingnag (10¢ per issue from McCallum) so attractive. Subs are available, however, at 10¢ per copy.
- 3) Unl<sub>i</sub>imited game openings and country choice(s) guaranteed in Ragnarck, from John Koning (318 So. Belle Vista, Youngstown, Ohio 44509). Games are bi-weekly. Fee is \$3 for first game, and \$1 for each additional game.
- 4) Adag, from Hal Naus (3221 National Ave. #91, National City, Calif. 92050) has game openings at \$3. Please send fees in cash or stamps... no checks.
- 5) Norman McLeod (906 Kimberwicke Rd., McLean, Va. 22101) produces two magazines: Yanadu, which has unlimited game openings at \$3 each; and Dunevegan, which will carry games in batches of four at the low rate of 4/\$3 or 8/\$5.

PERMANENT LISTING  
E\_A\_S\_T

- RALPH REINERTSEN, 792 Smith Ridge Rd., New Canaan, Conn. 06840.  
Age: 16. Phone: 966-1750. All AH & GD board wargames (except Nuclear War). Have military miniatures in 20mm and some 54mm. Have 6x10 table and field to use. Need in-person opponents. Can travel if close.
- JEFF W. KEY, 70 Lewis St. Eatontown, N.J. 07724. Age: 26. Phone: (201) 542-6449. Desire contact with other Diplomacy players. Desire contact with local 1:1200 naval games player who can teach me either Lord's or Pratt's rules (any period).
- CHARLES JOHNSON, William Sloane House YMCA, 353 W. 35th St., New York, N.Y., Please send mail to: P.O. Box 1651 G.P.O., New York, N.Y. 10001. Age: 20. Games: Confrontation, Vietnam, Diplomacy, and all AH games except Jutland and 1914.
- PETER GREIS, 34 Silver St., Malverne, L.I., N.Y. 11565. Age: 17. Board games: Tactics II, Afrika Korps, Jutland, Blitzkrieg, Guadalcanal. Willing to play naval wargames in 1:1200 scale. Also play-by-mail.
- JAMES BOSKEY, Cleveland-Marshall Law School, 1240 Ontario St., Cleveland, Ohio 44113. Interested in across-the-board Diplomacy. Willing to travel within reason.
- KENNETH BORECKI, 19 Royal Rd., Rockville Centre, N.Y. 11570. Phone: 516 764-8396. Age: 13. Board games: Jutland, Bulge, Stalingrad, Diplomacy, Risk, Chess; will play any others. 30mm Napoleonic Italy. Member: MTS.
- DONALD J. GREENWOOD, Clarion State College, Clarion, Pa. 16214. AH games plus Risk, Stratego, Chess, Fight in the Skies. Member: POW. Editor of PANZERFAUST. Will travel within reason.
- CHARLES N. REINSEL, 120 8th ., Clarion, Penna. 16214. Phone: CA6-7205. Age: 37. Diplomacy, Blockade, 1863, AH games, etc. Gamesmaster of BIG BROTHER, a postal Diplomacy zine. Will travel.
- ANTHONY PERRI, 92 Seanan Ave., Rickville Centre, N.Y. 11570. Phone: 516 RO6-8722. Almost all AH board games and miniatures.
- RICHARD BRYANT, 45 Willow St., Brockton, Mass. 02401. Phone: 583-6125. Board games: Tactics II, Jutland, Blitzkrieg, Bismarck, Afrika Korps, Midway, D-Day, Bulge, Diplomacy, Management. No miniatures yet, but would like to try. Am interested in setting up in-person Diplomacy club.
- JOSEPH T. SUCHAR, 50 E. Main St., Poultney, Vermont 05764. Age: 32. Phone: 802 287-9484. All AH games. Will travel to play. Prefer in-person games.
- DAVID SCHMID, R.D. #1, Briggs Rd., Moorestown, New Jersey 08057. Age: 23. Board games; Battle of Britain, Tactics II, Midway, Guadalcanal, Risk; Miniatures: WWII 1:100 scale ships, tanks, and figures. Will travel to play.
- BRIAN LIBBY, 16 William St., Portland, Maine 04103. Age: 18. Board games: all AH, Diplomacy. Will try anything. No miniatures or PBM.



WILLIAM R. CONNELLY, 15 Navarre Rd., Rochester, N. Y. 14621. Age: 19. Board games: Tactics II, Chancellorsville, D-Day, U-Boat, Waterloo, Bulge, Guadalcanal, Bismarck, Civil War, Jutland, Battle of Atlanta, Risk, Confrontation, Diplomacy; Ancient and Modern. period table top in 20mm. Will travel to 20 mile radius.

CENTRAL

DON SCHAFER, 1672 Robinwood Dr., Uniontown, Ohio 44685. Age: 16. Phone: 896-3010. Games: Bulge, S-Grad, D-Day, Midway, Tactics II, Battle of Britain.

DANIEL CLAPP, Room 1101, MSOE Roy Johnson, P.O. Box 353, Milwaukee, Wisc. 53201. Age: 18. Games: Blitzkreig, D-Day, Gettysburg, Guadalcanal.

ROBERT REUSCHLEIN, 2225 Keyes, Madison, Wisc. 53711. Phone: 255-2866. Age: 18. All AH games and many others.

MARK GOLDBERG, 4033 Wesley Ave., Berwyn, Ill. 60402. Age: 18. Phone: 312 788-5882. All GS and most AH games. Most interested in variants and self-designed games. Interested in miniatures. If you've got it, I'll play it. Limited transportation. Member: IFW, WGIG, N-N, F&SFWDG, Pzfaust. Any GALACTIC WAR suggestions?

JOHN W. SCHAEFER, 2709 Norbert St., Flint, Michigan 48504. Phone: 313 283-5703. Age: 19. Games: 1914, Jutland, Diplomacy, my AK modification, Bulge and Stalingrad realism modification, WWII strict realism, TT, Naval Battle game (mine), perhaps others. Prefer realism, like to work on games.

ROBERT KEITH, 634 W. Wisconsin Ave., Apt. 55, Milwaukee, Wisc. 53203. Age: 23. Will play most any AH game, plus Battle of Britain. Also PBM.

ERNEST SIMMERMAN, 5400 N. 64th St., Milwaukee, Wisc. 53218. Age: 18. Will play most AH games plus Nuclear War and Battle of Britain.

JOHN SIMMERMAN, 5400 N. 64th St., Milwaukee, Wisc. 53218. Age: 15. Phone: 461-8407. Will play Afrika Korps (either side).

BRUCE OGDEN, 874 Forest Hill Rd., Lake Forest, Ill. 60045. Age: 15. Phone: 234-8904. Board games: Stalingrad, Guadalcanal, Gettysburg-square, Confrontation, 1914; will play any others. Own no miniatures but willing to play any and all. Member: IFW. Will travel short distances.

DOUG CRAGOE, #2 Linden Lane, Springfield, Ill. 62707. Phone: 529-4849. Board games: Blitzkreig, D-Day, Afrika Korps, Vietnam, Guadalcanal, Confrontation, Bulge, Gettysburg-hex, Stalingrad, U-Boat, Waterloo, Jutland; Miniatures: WWII HO scale (Renagen Bridge). Member: IFW. Will travel short distances.

JIM HAHNENBERG, 413 Adams Drive, Midland, Mich. 48640. Age: 14. Phone: 832-3320, 832-3963. Board games: all AH games.

GEORGE PATTON, 1841 Suffolk Rd., Columbus, Ohio 43221. Board games: Afrika Korps, Gettysburg, Jutland, D-Day, Chancellorsville, Tactics II, Guadalcanal, Battle of Britain, Bulge. No miniatures or postal games. at this time. Member: AHIKS.

RICHARD LOCKE, 2232 Wesley Avenue, Evanston, Ill. 60201. Age: 18.  
Phone: 869-0035. Board games: AK, Bulge, Gettysburg, Jutland,  
Guadalcanal, Midway, U-Boat, Bismarck, Vietnam, Nuclear War,  
Dogfight, Broadside; Member: IFW, and local Evanston Club.  
Prefer games in my home.

JAMES MAXEINER, 22 Woodcrest Dr., St. Louis, Missouri 63124.  
Age: 15. Phone: 993-6483. Board games: Stalingrad, D-Day,  
Bulge (esp. S&T variant), Midway, Jutland, Bismarck, Diplomacy,  
Vietnam. Of secondary interest are: Blitzkrieg, Confrontation,  
U-Boat, Management, Acquire (3M), Football Strategy, and Nuclear  
War. I have played no games with miniatures or naval models, but  
I would be interested in trying some.

S\_O\_U\_T\_H

JARFED JOHNSON, 1548 Rochelle Drive, Chamblee, Ga. 30005. Age: 20.  
Phone: 404 457-8771. I have all AH games plus Diplomacy, Stratego,  
Risk, Go, Confrontation, Vietnam, and many others. No PBM at  
present. Am interested in locating other wargames in the Atlanta  
area. No miniatures to date.

STEPHEN TANG, 1548 Cameron Crescent Dr., Reston, Va. 22070. Age: 13.  
Phone: 471-7603. AK, Bulge, Blitz, Gettysburg, Jutland, 1914,  
Guadalcanal, D-Day, Waterloo, and Management. Willing to learn  
more.

THOMAS R. COVENEY, 4511 W. 126 St., Hawthorne, Calif. 90250. Age:  
25. Phone: 213 679-6750. 1914, Jutland, AK, Stalingrad, D-Day,  
Waterloo, Gettysburg, Bulge, Diplomacy, Phalanx. 30mm Napoleonic  
Rounds - 20mm Napoleonic Rounds. 1:1200 WWI naval games.  
7" late 18th century (Pyro). Will travel Saturday and Sunday during  
the day.

STEVEN EISENBERG, 3405 Fairland Rd., Beltsville, Md. 20705. Age: 15.  
Phone: 937-2985. Play all AH wargames except 1914. Play Confron-  
tation and Diplomacy also. Will travel short distances.

ROBERT SCHOOLFIELD, 3714 Belmont, Texarkana, Ark. 75501. Age: 16.  
Phone: 772-7261. Will play any wargame. Have AH U-Boat, Bis-  
marck, Midway, Jutland, 1914, Stalingrad, Blitzkrieg, Guadalcanal,  
AK, Bulge, Waterloo. Interested in naval and miniature wargames  
but have no experience with them. Can make limited trips in Texar-  
kana area. Also frequent trips to Dallas, Texas.

FRANK DULASH, 2918 Barmettle St., Raleigh, N.C. 27602. Phone:  
828-4919. Board games: Afrika Korps, Bulge, Blitzkrieg, Civil  
War, D-Day, Midway, Stalingrad, Waterloo, Chess. No miniatures  
as yet. PBM desired for board games. Discussion of board games  
design, variant games and Tolkein desired.

PETER DAVID SUMMER II, 605 Idlewild Circle, Apt. 202, Birmingham,  
Alabama 35205. Phone: 205 252-3736. Play all AH games, S&T  
Bulge variant, all GS games, Diplomacy; 1:1200 naval miniatures  
for WWI and WWII using Fletcher Pratt rules. AHTKS member. Will  
travel to play providing distance is reasonable. Will be going  
to graduate school next fall at Florida State University and would  
like to contact people in that area.

MICHAEL A. SMOLIK, 4580 40th St. North, St. Petersburg, Fla. 33714. Age: 16. Phone: 525-3268. I play Battle of Britain, D-Day, Afrika Korps, Guadalcanal, Diplomacy, Waterloo, Jutland, Stalingrad, Bulge, Midway, Tactics II, Blitzkreig. Limited travel, but for a good battle I would walk if necessary.

DONALD S. BURDICK, 108 Emerald Circle, Durham, N.C. 27707. Age: 31. Phone: 919 544-1459. Board games: D-Day '65, Bulge, Waterloo, Stalingrad, Afrika Korps, Tactics II, Gettysburg, Bismarck, Battle of Britain, Diplomacy. Member: AHIKS.

SID COCHRAN, JR., 1816 S. College, Tyler, Texas 75701. Age: 38. Phone: 214 592-2608 (res.), 214 592-5661 (office). AH games; by mail mostly; Afrika Korps, Stalingrad, Bulge, Guadalcanal, Waterloo, 1914, Blitzkreig, Confrontation. Also: Jutland played by mail per Norris system. Formerly played naval war games per Pratt and would correspond with group. Member: AHIKS. Available as judge or as participant for Confrontation by mail, limited number of engagements.

ERIC W. JUST, JR., Box 131, Paoli, Oklahoma 73704. Age: 24. Phone: 405 484-7382. Diplomacy, Jutland, Blitzkreig, Bulge, Stalingrad, D-Day, Waterloo, Midway, Bismarck, Guadalcanal, Gettysburg-hex, Gettysburg-square, Tactics II, Neiuchess, Chess, Risk, LeMans, Afrika Korps, U-Boat, Monopoly, Galaxy.

MICHAEL R. CHIEDERS, P.O. Box 316, San Marcos, Texas 78666. Age: 23. All AH wargames except U-boat. Also: Risk, Confrontation, Diplomacy, Nuclear War, Management, and Verrat, a diplomacy variant. Will travel to Austin, San Antonio, or elsewhere within one hour of San Marcos by car.

### W E S T

JOSEF CONRAD FRIESNER WOLFGANG ANTO FRH. VON METZKE, 5327 Hilltop Dr. San Diego, Calif. 92114. Phone: 714 262-9241, evenings. Age: 24. Diplomacy Gamesmaster and publisher (COSTAGUANA). Games: Diplomacy, Jutland, D-Day, and a consuming interest in learning any others that come along. Member IFW (Diplomacy Director). House available for table games; will travel as far as Los Angeles or El Centro. PBM.

MARC HERBERT, 814 Hilda St., Anaheim, Calif. 92806. Age: 15. Phone: 714 776-9809. Almost all AH, GS. Interested in miniatures. Interested in Naval games, Diplomacy, Member: Spartan Wargamers. Looking for new members or new live opponents. No PBM; PBM'ers for Sparta welcome.

JIM KNAPP, JR., 6760 White Ave., Long Beach, Calif. 90805. Age: 15. Phone: 213 632-2952. Bulge, S'grad, Gettysburg, AK, Waterloo, & 1914. Do not have any miniatures as yet, but would like to see a game using them. The Battle Period would be about the Revolutionary War or Napoleonic Wars. I will travel & I belong to Aggressor Homeland.

DAVID MAY, 7370 Cabrille Ave., La Jolla, Calif. 92037. Phone: 714 454-5439. Age: 15. Blitzkreig, D-Day, Battle of Bulge, 1914, Afrika Korps, Guadalcanal; Non-AH games; and Diplomacy. Member: USCD Naval Wargamers Society.

RUSSELL BOGGS, 5269 College Gardens Ct., San Diego, Calif. 92115, Age: 15. Phone: 582-2976. Confrontation, Stalingrad, Afrika Korps, Blitzkreig, Guadalcanal, Bulge (+ S&T variant), Jutland, Midway, Waterloo, Battle of Britain, 1914, Diplomacy; future 30mm Napoleonics player.

DOUGLAS BEYERLEIN, 3934 S.W. Southern, Seattle, Wash. 98116. Phone: 932-5743. Age: 18. Games: Blitzkreig, D-Day, AK, Guadalcanal, Stalingrad, LeMans, Confrontation, BLM Football; Member: PNWWGA. Will travel in Seattle to play and down to Portland, Oregon, on occasions. Can arrange group meetings in Greater Seattle area if given advance notice.

JIM MONROE, 1315 Sel Molino Ave., Pasadena, Calif. 91106. Age: 25. Phone: 795-5313. Stalingrad, AK, D-Day, Bulge, and will play any others. Live at idea location for live diplomacy... share old mansion with several guys.

O V E R S E A S

JOHN RAYNER, 17 Burnaby Road, Gravesend, Kent, United Kingdom; Age: 30. 20mm A.C.W. wargames. Member: London Wargame Section.

POSTAL LOCATOR

CHRIS WALKER, 1408 Devers Rd., York, Penna. 17404. Age: 16. Wish to play Blitzkreig, Gettysburg, and Chess by mail.

FRANK MARCHESE, 209 West End Ave., Massapequa, N.Y. 11758. Age: 14. PBM; D-Day, Bulge, AK, Stalingrad.

OKTAY OZTUNALI, 1820 Harison Ave., 7B, Bronx, N. Y. 10453. Age: 26. Phone: 212 299-1455. PBM: Stalingrad, D-Day, Blitzkreig, AK, Waterloo, Bulge.

KEVIN McCARTHY, 3866 Wallingford, South Euclid, Ohio 44121. Age: 17. Games: D-Day, Waterloo, Stalingran, Guadalcanal, Bulge, AK, Blitzkreig, Diplomacy.

DON SCHAFER, 1672 Robinwood, Dr. Uniontown, Ohio 44685. Age: 16. Wish to play D-Day, S-grad, by mail.

===== FROM:

John Koning  
318 So. Belle Vista  
Youngstown, Ohio 44509  
USA

first  
class